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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Coundil
City of Corunna

Corunna, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Corunna as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as fisted in the {able of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Compirolier General of the United States. Those standards require that we pian and perform the audit o obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit inciudes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principies used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred fo above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented compocnent
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Corunna as of June 30, 2009,
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended
in conformity with accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 27, 2009 on
our consideration of the City of Corunna’s internal conirel over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal conirol over financial reporting or on
compiiance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the resulis of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, as identified in the tabie of
contents, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.

East Lansing = Rochester Hilis = St Johns
-i-



Our audit was conducied for the purpose of forming opiniens an the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Corunna’s basic financial statements. The accompanying other suppiementary information, as
identified in the table of contents, is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements. The other supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinian, is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation {o the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

M .’% g,

ABRAHAM & GAFFNEY, P.C.
Certified Public Accouniants

October 27, 2009



City of Corunna
Management’s Discussjon and Analysis

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a discussion and analysis of City of Corunna’s {the City's} financial performance and position,
providing an overview of the activities for the year ended June 30, 2009. This analysis should be read in
conjunction with the Independent Auditors Report and with the City's financial statements, which follow this
section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide:

+ Total net assets were $13,753,643 (excluding component units}.
« Governmental activities net assets were $8,937,037.

+« Business-type activity net assets were $4,816,606.

« Component Unit net assets were $1,311,413,

Fund Level:

+ At the close of the fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reperted a combined ending fund batance of
$2,126,976 with $77,015 being reserved, designated, or otherwise earmarked for specific purposes.

+ The General Fund realized $7.641 more in revenues and other financing sources than anticipated for the
fiscal year. General Fund operations expended $79,354 less than appropriated.

+» QOverall, the General Fund balance increased by $14,246 to $448,478 - all undesignated and available for
general purposes.

+ Net Assels in the Sewer and Water funds ended the year at $3,665,658 and $1,146,803, respectively.

Capital and Long-term Debt Activities:

+ The total long-term debt for the primary government was $2,907,642 with a net decrease of $508,961 from
the pricr year.

+ The City remains well below its autharized legal debt limit.
The total net additions tc the capital asset scheduie for the primary government was $610,350 and included
water, sewer, and sireet improvements, as well as various equipment and building improvements,

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended o serve as an infroduction te the City’s annual financiat report. The
annual financial report of the City consists of the following components: |} /ndependent Auditors Report; 2)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and 3) the Basic Financial Statements {government-wide financial
statements, fund financial statements, notes {o the financial statements), Required Supplementary Information
such as budget to actual comparisons for the General Fund and major Special Revenue Funds, and Cther
Supplementary Information including combining financial statements for ail nonmajor governmentai funds and
other funds and other financial data.

Government-wide Financial Statements (Reporting the City as a Whoie)

The set of governmeni-wide financial statements are made up of the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities, which report information about the City as a whole, and about its activities, Their
purpose is to assist in answering the question: "Is the City, in ifs entirely, betier or worse off as a result of this
fiscal vear's aclivities?” These statements, which include all non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, are reporied on
the accrual basis of accounting, similar to a private business. This means revenues are accounted for when
they are earned and expenses are accounted for when incurred, regardiess of when the aciual cash is received
or dishursed.

The Staiement of Net Assets {page 1) presents all of the City's asseis and liabilities, recording the difference
between the two as "net assets”. Over lime, increases or decreases in net assets measure whether the City's
financial position is improving or deteriorating.



City of Corunna
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Statement of Activities {page 2) presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during
2008/2009. All changes in net assets are reparted based on the period for which the underiying events giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Therefore, revenue and expenses are
reported in these statements for some items that will only result in cash flows in future financial periods, such as
uncollected taxes and earned but unused empioyee annual leave,

Both statements report the following activities:

s Governmental Activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported under this category. Taxes,
charges for services and intergovernmental revenue primarily fund these services. Most of the City's
general government departments, law enforcement, economic development, city improvements, street
improvements, recreation activities, and other City wide elecied official operations and blended component
units are reported under these activities.

» Business-type Activities - These aclivities operate like private businesses, The City charges fees to
recover the cost of the services provided. The Water System Fund and the Sewer System Fund are
examples of these activities.

+ Discretely Presented Component Units - Discretely Presented Component units are legally separate
organizations for which the City Council and Administration appecints a majority of the organization’s palicy
board and there is a degree of financial accountability to the City. One arganization is included as a
discretely presented component unit: the Downtown Deveiopment Authority. The remaining component
units are blended into the primary government governmentiai activities as required.

As stated previously, the government-wide statements report on an accrual basis of accounting. However, the
governmental funds report on a modified accrual basis. Under modified accrual accounting, revenues are
recognized when they are measurable and available to pay obligations of the fiscal period, expenditures are
recognized when they are due to be paid frem available resources.

Because of the different basis of accounting between the fund statements (described below) and the
government-wide statements, pages 5 and 8 present reconciliations between the two statement types. The
following summarizes the impact of transitioning from madified accrual o full accrual accounting:

« Capital assets used in governmental aciivilies (depreciation} are nct reported on the fund financial
statements of the governmental fund. Capital assets and depreciation expense are reported on the
government-wide statements.

» Capital outiay spending results in capital assets on the government-wide statements, but is reported as
expenditures on the fund financial statements of the governmental funds.

* Internal service funds are reported as governmental aciivities on the government-wide statements, but are
reported as proprietary funds on the fund financial statements.

» long-term liabiiities, such as amounts accrued for sick and annuai leave {compensated absences), etc.
appear as liabilities on the government-wide statements; however, they will not appear on the fund financial
statemenis unless current rescurces are used to pay a specific obligation.

+ Long-ferm debt proceeds are reported as liabilities on the government-wide statements, but are recorded as
other financing sources on the fund financial statements.

In addition, it shouid be noted that the government-wide financial statements include the net value of the City's
general capital assets such as buildings, land, cars, computer equipment, etc. These values are not included in
the fund financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements {(Reporting the City's Major Funds}

The fund financial statements, which begin on page 3, provide information on the City's significant {major} funds,
and aggregated nonmajor funds. A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts
that the City uses to keep irack cf specific sources of funding and spending for a particular purpose. Traditional
users of governmental financial stalements will find the Fund Financiai Statements presentation more familiar.



City of Corunna
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The basic financial statements report major funds as defined by the Government Accounting Standards Beard
{GASB} Statement No. 34 in separate columns. Statement Na. 34 defines a “major fund” as the General Fund,
and any governmental or enterprise fund which has either iotal assets, total iiabilities, total revenues or fotal
expenditures/expenses that equal af least ten {10} percent of those categories for either the governmental funds
or the enterprise funds and where the individual fund total also exceeds five {5} percent of those categaries for
governmental and enterprise funds combined. The majer funds for City of Corunna include the General Fund,
the Economic Development Fund, the City Improvement Fund, the Industrial Deveicpment Fund, the DDA
Custodial Fund, the Sewer System Fund, and the Water System Fund. All other funds are classified as
nenmajor funds and are reported in aggregate by the appiicable fund type. The City includes detailed
information an its nenmajor funds in the other supplementary information section of this report.

The City's funds are divided into three categories - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - and use different
accounting appreaches:

+ Governmental Funds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in the governmental funds, The focus
of these funds is how cash and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash, flow in and out
during the course of the fiscal year and how the balances left at year-end are available for spending on
future services. Consequenily, the governmental fund financial statements provide a detailed short-ferm
view that helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that may be expended in the
near future to finance the City's programs. Governmental funds inciude the General Fund, as well as
Special Revenue Funds (use of fund batance is restricted}, Capital Profects Funds (used to report major
capital acquisitions and construction}, and Debf Service Funds {accounis for rescurces used to pay iong-
term debt principal and interest) and Permanent Funds.

* Proprietary Funds - Services for which the City charges customers (whether outside the City structure or a
City department} a fee are generaily reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds use the same accrual
basis of accounting used in the government-wide statementis and by private business. There are two types
of proprietary funds. Enferprise funds report activities that provide supplies and/or services o the general
pubiic. An example is the Sewer System Fund. Infernal Service funds report activities that provide supplies
or service fo the City's other operations, such as the Motor Pool Fund. Internal Service funds are reported
as governmental activities on the government-wide statements.

» Fiduciary Funds - The City acts as a trustee or fiduciary in certain instances. It is also responsible for other
assets that, because of trust arrangements, can only be used for the trust beneficiaries. The City’s fiduciary
activities are reported in the separate Statement of Net Assets on page 17. These funds, which include
trust and agency funds, are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. The government-wide
statements exc/ude the fiduciary fund activities and balances because these assets are not available to the
City to fund its operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the detail provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The Notes can be found beginning on
page 18 of this repori.

Required Supplementary Information

Foliowing the Basic Financial Statements is additional Reguired Supplementary Information (RSI}, which further
explains and supports the information in the financial statements. RS includes a budgetary comparison
schedules for the General Fund and the major special revenue funds.

Other Supplementary Information

Other Supplementary Information includes combining financial statements for nonmajor governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary funds. These funds, except for the fiduciary funds, are added together, by fund type,
and are presented in aggregate single columns in the appropriate basic financial staiements.



City of Corunna
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE
As previousily stated, City of Corunna’s combined net assets were $13,753,643 at the end of this fiscal year's
operations. The net assets of the governmental aciivities were $8,937,037; the business type activities were
$4,816,606.

Met Assefs as of June 30, 2008 and 2009

Total
Governmental Business-type Primary
Activities Activities Government
2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2008
Current and
Other Asseis $ 2,719,866 § 2,765,128 $ 509,766 $ 174,687 $ 3,319,632 § 2,839,815
Capital Assels 7,350,752 7,607,890 6,411,580 6,270,153 13,762,332 13,878.143

Total Assets $10,070.618 $10,373,118 §7,011,346 $ 6,444,840  $17,081,964 $16,817,958
Current Liabilites ~ § 376,481 § 396,530 $ 316732 $ 303,234 $ 693,223 § 699,764

Noncurrent Liabilities 1,316,458 1,039,551 1,564,452 1,325,000 2,880,911 2,364,551
Total Liabilities ~ § 1,692,950 $ 1,436,081 & 1,881,184 § 1,628,234 $ 3,574,134 §$ 3,064,315
Net Assets

Invested in Capital
Assets {Net of

related debt) $ 6,178,792 § 6,300,065 $ 4,599,652 $ 4,705,701 $10,778,344 $11,005,756
Restricted 1,287,580 1,242,369 66,125 70,938 1,363,715 1,313,307
Unrestricted 901,286 1,394,613 464,485 39,967 1,365,771 1,434,580

Total Net Assets  § 8,377,668 $ 8,937,037 §$ 5130162 $ 4816606 $13,507.830 $13,753,643

The following condensed financial informaticn was derived from the gevernment-wide Statement of Activities
and reflects how the City's primary government net assets changed during the fiscal year:

Changes in Net Assefs for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2008 and 2009

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2009 2008 2008 2008 2009

Revenues

Program Revenues

Charges for Services§ 687,495 § 724,835 $ 1,184,967 §$ 1,062,821 $ 1,872,462 § 1,787,656
Grants and

Contributions 341,486 333,817 337,396 167,729 678,882 481,646
General Revenues

Property Taxes 1,116,631 1,115,708 - - 1,116,631 1,115,708
State Shared Revenue 352,470 357,319 - - 352,470 357,319
Investment Earnings 85,193 56,836 3,359 2,406 88,552 59,242
QOther { 288086 ) 170,442 121,539 _{ 53,207 ) 82,733 117,235

Total Revenues 2,554,469 2,759,057 1,647,261 1,169,749 4,201,730 3,928,806



City of Corunna

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Changes in Net Assets for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2008 and 2009 - continued

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009
Expenses
General Government$y 415,146 $§ 563,017 § - - $ 415146 § 563,017
Public Safety 640,644 619,526 - - 640,644 619,526
Public Works 774,800 533,916 - - 774,800 533,916
Health and Welfare 41,884 41,073 - - 41,884 41,073
Community and
Economic Develop. 176,828 51,223 - - 176,828 51,223
Recreation & Cultural 280,621 192,544 - - 280,621 192,544
Other 182,862 198,389 1,363,249 1,483,305 1,546,111 1,681,694
Totai Expenses 2,512,785 2,199,688 1,363,249 1,483,305 3,876,034 _ 3,682,993
Increase {decrease)
in net assets 41,684 559,369 284,012 { 313,556 ) 325,696 245,813
Net Assets -
Beginning 8,335,984 8,377,668 4,846,150 5,130,162 13,182,134 13,507,830

Net Assets - Ending § 8,377,668 $ 8,937,037 § 5,130,162 §$ 4,816,606 $13,507.830 $13.753,643

Governmental Activities:

The result of 2008/2009 governmental activity was a net increase of $559,369 in net assetis to $8,837,037. Of
the total governmenial activities' net assets, $6,300,055 is invested in capital asseis less relaied debt,
$1,242,369 is reported as resiricted, meaning these assets are legally committed for a specific purpose through
statue, or by another autharity outside the City government. The balance of $1,394,613 is listed as unrestricted,
having no legal commitment.

Revenues:

The three largest revenue categories were state shared revenue at 13%, property taxes at 40%, and charges for
services at 26%. The City levied three (3} property tax millages for the year ended June 30, 2009, one being for
general government cperations at 13.3044 mills, which is not assigned to any pariicular activity, one for City
Public Improvements at 4.8342 mills, and one for transportation of .25 mills. Charges for services, which
reimburse the City for specific activities, are the second largest source of governmental activity revenue.
Examples include rentals, recreation fees, fire protection, and permits.

Expenses:

Public Safety is the targest governmental activity, expending approximately 28% of the governmental activities
total. General Government is the second largest area, expending approximaiely 26% of the governmental
activities fotal,

Business-type Activities:

Net assets in business-type aclivities decreased by $313,556 during 2008/2009. Of the business-type activities’
net assets, $4,705,701 is invested in capital assets less related debt, $70,938 is reported as restricted, meaning
these assets are legally committed for a specific purpose through statue, or by another authority outside the City
government. The balance of $39,967 is listed as unrestricted, having no legal commitment.

- vii -



City of Corunna
Management’'s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S MAJOR AND NONMAJOR FUNDS

As the City completed 2008/2009, its governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $2,126,976. This
is a net increase of $155,597. The net changes are summarized in the following chart;

Nonmajor
General Economic City Industrial DDA Governmental
Fund Development | Improvement Development Custodial Funds
Fund Balance
06/30/08 $ 434,232 $ 32485 1 § 556,980 $ 660,650 $ 150,000 $ 637,162
Fund Balance
06/30/09 $ 448478 $ 60,363 | $ 77,117 $ 683,010 $ 150,000 § 708,008
Net Change $ 14,246 $ 27,808 | § 20,137 $ 22,480 $ -0- $ 70,848

General Fund:

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. Unless otherwise required by siatue, coniractual
agreement or Board policy, all City revenues and expenditures are recorded in the General Fund. As of June
30, 2009, the General Fund reported a fund balance of $448,478. This amount is an increase of $14,246 from
the fund balance of $434,232 reported as of June 30, 2008. The 2008/2009 original budget calied for a $74,074
use of fund balance.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights:

The City of Corunna’s budget is a dynamic document. Although adopted in June (pricr to the start of the year),
the budget is routinely amended during the course of the year to reflect changing operational demands.

Actual General Fund revenues and other financing sources totaled $1,637,8086, $7,641 above the final amended
budget.

The City's expenditure budget was decreased by $45,726 (2.6% change from the original budget) during
2008/2009.

Actual City operational expenditures for 2008/2009 were $1,383,272 {5.4%) under budget. This is due to
several reasons including:

» $10,982 less than planned expenditures in the Fire Department.

o $10,721 less in the Public Works Department.

¢ $12,072 less than planned expenditures in the other Public Safety activities.

s 540,935 tess in the City Manager, Clerk/Treasurer, Internal Services, Assessor and related departments.

Economic Development Fund:

As of June 30, 2009, the Economic Development Fund reported a fund balance of $60,383, an increase of
$27,908 from the prior year. The total fund baiance is unreserved/undesignated.

City Improvement Fund:

As of June 30, 2009, the City Improvement Fund reported a fund baiance $77,177, which is an increase of
$20,137 from the prior year. The total fund balance is unreserved/undesignated.

Industrial Development Fund:

As of June 30, 2009, the Industrial Development Fund reported a fund balance of $683,010, which is an
increase of $22,460 from the prior year. The iotal fund balance is unreserved/undesignated.

- vifi -




City of Corunna
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

DDA Custodial Fund:

As of June 30, 2009, the DDA Custodial Fund reported a fund balance of $150,000, which is the same as the
prior year. The {otal fund balance is unreserved/undesignated.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets - At the end of Fiscal Year 2008/2008, the City had invested $13,878,143, and $1,116,891 for the
component unit, net of accumulated depreciation, in a broad range of capital assets (see table below).
Accumulated depreciation was $8,790,240 for the primary government. Depreciation charges for the fiscal year
totated $636,417 for the primary government and $106,147 for the component unit. Additional information
related to capital assets is detailed in Note G of the Financial Statements. Net Book value of capital assets at

June 30, 2009 was as foilows:

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Unit - DDA Total
Land $ 279,000 3 127 $ -1 $ 279,127
Buildings, net 1,055,052 - 402,750 1,457,802
Vehicles and equipment, net 681,386 12,643 - 694,039
Construction in progress 79,929 8,750 - 89,679
Infrastructure, net 5,512,613 - - 5,512,613
Sewer system, net - 5,040,092 - 5,040,092
Water system, net - 1,207,841 - 1,207,541
Improvements, net - - 714,141 714,141
Capital assets, netf $ 7,607,890 $ 6,270,153 $ 1116,891 | § 14,995,034

Long-term_Debt - As of June 30, 2009, the City had $2,872,389 in debt cuistanding for the primary government.
This level of net obligation is $544,216 less than the obligation recorded as of June 30, 2008.

Outistanding Debt as of June 30, 2009:

Primary Government July 1, 2008 Additions Deletions June 30, 2009
Governmental Activities
General Cbligation Bonds $ 810,000 $ - $ 130,000 $ 680,000
Transpor{ation Bonds 95,000 - 15,000 80,000
Installment Purchases 266,960 - 76,525 190,435
MEDC Loan 390,000 - 32,500 357,500
Compensated absences 42 815 45,891 53,251 35,255
Business-type Activities
General Obligation Bonds 1,280,000 - 175,000 1,105,000
improvement Bonds 490,000 - 45,000 445,000
Instaliment Purchase 42,028 ~ 27,576 14,452
Total Primary Government 3,416,603 45,891 554,852 2,907,642
Component Unit
Installment Loan 130,374 - 38,024 02,350
Land Contract Payabie 60,000 - 31.000 28,000
Total Reporting Entity $3606977 § 45891 §$ 623,876  $ 3.028,992

A more detailed discussion of the City’s long-term debt obligations is presenied in Note H io the financial

statements.




City of Corunna

Management’s Discussion and Analysijs

CITY OF CORUNNA GOVERNMENT ECONOMIC OUTLOQK:

» State revenue sharing has remained stagnant for the past four years, after having received substantial
reductions years previous. Restoration of these funds does not appear likely due to state budget problems
and additional cuts are anticipated in the current and fuiure years.

e Property tax revenue is flat. Growth from new real and persconal tax base remains low. Inflationary increases
to Taxable Values are being offset by reductions in State Equalize Value as a result of decreases in
property values.

Invesiment earnings decreased this year due to lower market interest rates.

+ Health and dental insurance premiums continue rising much faster than the rate of inflation.
Retirement costs continue increasing due to market factors and funding of retiree health obligations.

+ Utility and fuel costs continue rising faster than the rate of inflation.

These factors were considered in adopting the Budget for 2009/2010. Expenditure reductions have been
implemented to offset revenue losses and rising costs. A usage of $25,500 of the City's fund balance was
included for the purpose of funding the final installment purchase option on a property purchase as committed to
several years previous. No usage of fund balance was allocated for purpose of meeting operational needs in an
effort to preserve fund equity during these uncertain times. Given these current trends, the City has made a firm
commitment to operate within current revenues whiie at the same time investing in economic development
opportunities of the City while maintaining a healthy fund balance. The City continues to look for ways to
increase efficiencies and reduce the cost of doing business.

CONTACTING THE GiTY

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If
there are questions about this report, or a need for additional informaticn, contact the City of Corunna’s
Treasurer's Office at {989) 743-3650.



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



City of Corunna
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2009

Primary Government

Governmental Business-lype Component
Activities Activities Total Unit {DDA)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,169,749 3 {76,605 § 1,093,144 $ 66,022
Investmenis 158,610 - 158,610 -
Receivables 140,012 99,844 239,856 86,170
Due from other governmental units 276,605 87,356 363,981 -
Total current assels 1,744,976 110,595 1,855,571 152,192
Noncurrent assets
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted - - - 4,320
investments 575,000 50,000 625,000 425,000
Treatment rights, net - 14,092 14,092 -
Due from other governmental units 320,000 - 320,000 -
Noncurrent porlion of contracts receivable 125,152 - 125,152 546,248
Capital assets not being depreciated 358,92¢ 9,877 368,806 -
Capital assets being depreciated, net 7,249,061 6,260,276 13,500,337 1,116,891
Total noncurent asseis 8,628,142 6,334,245 14,962,387 1,792,459
TOTAL ASSETS 10,373,118 6,444,840 16,817,958 1,944,651
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 41,896 40,489 82,385 B89
Other accrued liabilities 41,264 1,167 42,421 -
Accrued interest payable 9,741 22,126 31,867 -
Due to other governmentat units - - -0- 187,499
Rentai deposits - - -0- 4320
Current portion of compensated absences 28,204 - 28,204 -
Current portion of long-term debt 275,435 239,452 514,887 57,059
Total current liabilities 396,530 303,234 699,764 248,947
MNoncurrent liabilities
Due to other governmental units - - Q- 320,000
Noncurrent porlion of compensated absences 7,051 - 7,051 -
Noncurrent porlion of long-term debt 1,032,500 1,325,000 2,357,500 64,291
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,039,551 1,325,000 2,364,551 384,291
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,436,081 1,628,234 3,064,315 633,238
NET ASSETS
invested in capital assets, net of related debt 6,300,055 4,705,701 11,005,756 995,541
Restricted for
Debt service - 70,938 70,938 -
Other purposes 1,242,369 - 1,242,369 -
Unrestricted 1,394,613 39,967 §,434,580 315,872
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ B,937,037 $ 4,816,606 $ 13,753,643 $ 1,311,413

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




City of Corunna

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Net [Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues

Changes in Net Assets

Primary Govermnment

Charges for  Qperating Grants Capital Grants Governmental Business-type Compaonent
Funclions/Programs Expenses Services and Contributicns  and Contributicns Activities Activities Total Unit
Primary govemment
Governmentzsl actvities
General govemnment § 5630t7 0§ 188203 % - % - 5 {3Tgd) 35 - § (34814 3 -
Public safety 619 525 163,631 2,734 36,400 {409.761) - (409,751} -
Public warks 533,916 160,414 246,070 2,574 {124.858) - (124,858} -
Health and welfare 41,073 25,765 - - {15,308 - {15,308} -
Community and ecangrtic development 51,223 55411 - - 4,188 - 4,188 -
Recreation and culturat 192 544 126,411 7062 37077 (21,3994) - {21,994} -
Other 146,311 - - - {146,211) - (146,311} -
Interest and fees on long-term debt 52,078 - - - {52.078) - {52,078} -
Total governmental activities 2,199,688 724,835 255,866 78,051 (1,140,938) -+ (1,140,936} -0-
Business-type activities
Sewer sysiem 941,612 457,565 - 157,729 - {326.325) (326,325) -
Water system 453,697 551,091 - - - 67,494 67,494 -
Rubbish collection 58,088 54,165 - - - {3,924) {3.924) -
Total business-type adlivities 1,483,206 1,062,821 -0- 157,729 -+ {262.755) (262,755} -0-
Tolal primary govermment S 3,682,953 S17578B56 § 2558668 % 235780 (1,140,936 (262,755 {1,403,691) -0-
Compaonent unik
Cowntown development authority (DDA} S 220170 § 63803 3% -0 § -C- -0 -0 - {156,367)
General revenues
Froperty taxes 1,115,708 - 1,115,708 54,0585
State shared revenue 357,319 - 357,319 -
Investment eamings 56,836 2,406 59,242 9
Rental revenue 15,083 - 15,083 -
Miscellanequs 88,358 13,793 102,152 7732
Transfars 57.000 {67,000} -0- -
Total general revenues and ransiers 1,700,305 (50,8013 1,649,504 93,336
Change in net assets 559,369 {313,558} 245,813 (B2,871)
Met assets, beginning of the year 8,377,668 5,130,162 13,507.830 1,374,384
Met assets, end of the year 3 8937037 § 48166068 Bi3733643 S1.311.413

See accampanying notes to financial statements.




ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Accounts receivahle

Contracts receivable

Special assessment receivable
Due from other funds

Due from other governmental units

State
Local

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Accounis payable
Cther accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for

Perpetual care

Debt service
Unreserved

Undesignated, reporied in
General fund
Special revenue funds
Capital projects

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

City of Corunna

June 30, 2009

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

Economic City

General Development Improvement
$ 219,685 $ 35,363 % 78,942
250,000 25,000 -
3,435 - -

- 221,593 -

9,173 - 30,810
10,425 - -

$ 492,718 $ 281,956 £ 109,752
¥ 19,035 $ - 3 1,825
16,032 - -
9,173 221,593 30,810

44,240 221,693 32,635
448,478 - -

- 60,363 77,117

448,478 60,363 77,117

$ 492,718 $ 281,956 $ 109,752




Nonmajor

DDA Industrial Governmental
Custodial Development Funds Total
1 $ 183,026 $ 615,195 $ 1,132,212
- 400,000 58,610 733,610
- - 153 3,588
- - - 221,593
- - - 39,983
- 100,000 - 100,000
- - 34,987 34,987
507,499 - 43,694 561,618
507,500 $ 683,026 $ 752639 $ 2,827,591
- $ 16 $ 19,450 $ 40,3286
- - 25,181 41,213
357,500 - - 619,076
357,500 16 44,631 700,615
- - 71,700 71,700
- - 5,315 5,315
- - - 448,478
150,000 - 410,838 598,318
- 683,010 220,155 903,165
150,000 683,010 708,008 2,126,976
507,500 $ 683,026 $ 752,639 $ 2,827,591




City of Corunna

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2009

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 2,126,976
Amounts reporied for the governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activilies are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported as assets in the governmental funds.

The cost of capital assets is $ 12,049,565
Accumulated depreciation is {5,341,575)
Capital assets, net 7,607,990

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs

of certain aciivities {o individual funds. The assets and liahilities

of the Internal Service Funds are included in the governmental activities
in the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

Net assets of governmenial activities

accounted for in Internal Service Funds 253,231
Net capital assets of Internal Service Funds
included in tofal capital assets above (317,305)
{64,074)
Long-term assets are not availabie to pay for current period expenditures
and are therefore deferred in the funds.
Deferred revenue 619,076
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current pericd and
therefore are not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.
Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:
Bonds, loans, and leases payable 1,307,935
Accrued interest payable 9,741
Compensated absences 35,255
(1,352,931}
Net assets of governmental activities $ 8,937,037

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



City of Corunna

Governmental Funds

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Year Ended June 30, 2009

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and rents
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Community and economic development
Recreation and cultural
Other

Debt service

Capital oullay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER} EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statemenis.

Economic City
General Development Improvement
$ 849121 $ - $ 303,824
25,943 - ~
358,390 - -
272,596 - -
12,537 - -
45,076 1,360 8,344
73,943 46,582 51,828
1,637,606 47,942 363,996
467,492 - -
455,485 - -
319,673 - -
425 20,034 30,764
140,197 - -
1,383,272 20,034 30,764
254,334 27,908 333,232
{240,088) - (313,095}
(240,088) -0- {313,005)
14,246 27,908 20,137
434,232 32,455 56,980
$ 448,478 $ 60,363 $ 7117




Nonmajor

DDA industrial Governmental
Custodial Development Funds Total
- $ - $ - $ 1,152,945
. - 16,604 42,547
32,500 - 287,219 678,109
- - 221,551 494,147
- - - 12,537
- 22,255 28,565 105,600
- - 68,636 240,989
32,500 22,255 622,575 2,726,874
- - 88,753 566,245
- - 146,695 601,080
- 9,795 209,131 538,599
- - 41,073 41,073
“ - - 51,223
- - 216,030 216,030
- - 13,474 163,671
32,500 38,152 238,348 309,000
- - 185,367 185,367
32,500 47,947 1,137,771 2,662,288
-0- {25,692) {515,196) 74,586
- 48,152 752,805 800,957
- - (166,763} (719,946)
-0- 48,152 586,042 81,011
-0- 22,480 70,846 166,597
150,000 660,550 637,162 1,971,379
150,000 $ 683,010 $ 708,008 $ 2,126,976




City of Corunna

RECONCILIATION OF THE CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 155,697
Amounis reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Capital ouflays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the

statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:

Capital outlay $ 576,464
Depreciation expense {337,626)
Excess of capital cutlay over depreciation expense 238,838

Some items reported in the statement of activities are not avaitable to finance expenditures
of the fiscal period and therefore are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds.
These activities consist of:

Capital contribution 18,400

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cosis of
certain activities to individual funds.

Increase in Net Assets of internal Service Funds 108,271
Capital outlay of Internal Service Funds
included in the total above (213,421)
Depreciation expense of Internal Service Funds
inciuded in the total above 40,618
(64,531)
Repayment of long-term debt and borrowing of long-term debt is reported as expenditures and
other financing sources in governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities and the borrowings increase long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
In the current year, these amounts consist of:
Loan principal retirement 254,025
Some items reported in the statement of activities do not result in the use of or provide current
financial resources and therefore are reported differently than in the governmental funds.
These activities consist of:
Decrease in accrued interest payable 2,897
Decrease in accrued compensated absences 7,360
Decrease in deferred revenue (63,217)
{(42,960)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 558,368

See accompanying notes fo financial statements.



ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivabie
Due from other governmental units

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Investmenis
Treatment rights, net
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Other accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

City of Corunna

Proprietary Funds

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2009

Invested in capitai assets, net of related debt

Restricted for
Debt service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Nonmajor
Sewer Water {Rubbish
System System Collection)

3 (49,295 $ {29,669) 2,359
48,491 44,719 6,634
73,590 13,766 -
72,786 28,816 8,993
25,000 25,000 -
14,092 - -

1 9,876 -
5,042,340 1,217,936 -
5,081,433 1,252,812 -0-
5,154,219 1,281,628 §,993

17,114 18,627 4,848
20,951 1,175 -
496 671 -
175,000 64,452 -
213,561 84,825 4,848
1,275,000 50,000 -
1,488,561 134,825 4,848
3,592,341 1,113,360 -
70,938 - -
2,379 33,443 4,145

3 3665658 $ 1,146,803 4,145

See accompanying notes fo financial statements.



Business-

Type Governmenial
Activities Activities
Internal
Service
Total Funds

$ (76,605} $ 37,537
99,844 -
87,350 -
110,595 37,537
50,000 -
14,092 -
9,877 -
6,260,276 317,305
6,334,245 317,305
6,444,840 354,842
40,489 1,570
22,126 -

1,167 41

-0- 100,000

239,452 -

303,234 101,641
1,325,000 -

1,628,234 101,611
4,705,701 317,305
70,938 -
39,967 {64,074)

$ 4,816,606 3 253,231

-10 -



City of Corunna

Proprietary Funds

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Year Ended June 30, 2009

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Capital charges
Meter charges
Cther

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OCPERATING EXPENSES
Persannel services
Employee benefits
Other operating costs
Depreciation and amaortization
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES {EXPENSES)
Interest expense and fees
Construction grant - Federal
Interest earned
Proceeds from sale of asset
TOTAL NONOPERATING (EXPENSES)
INCOME {LOSS) BEFCRE TRANSFERS
TRANSFERS
Transfer in
Transfer out
TOTAL TRANSFERS
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Nei assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying neotes o financial statements.

Nonmajor
Sewer Water {Rubbish
System System Caollection}

$ 230,110 % 315,005 % 54,165

227,455 224,671 -

- 11,415 -

27 13,766 -

457,592 564,857 54,165

115,715 137,204 -

12,153 16,082 -

513,204 252,447 58,089

233,956 66,933 -

875,028 472,666 58,089
(417,436) 02,191 {3,924)

(66,591) (10,931} -

157,729 - -

1,243 1,163 -

92,381 {9,768} -0-
(325,055} 82,423 (3,924)

62,500 - 2,500

- {132,000) -

62,500 {132,000) 2,600
(262,555} (49,577) {1,424}

3,928,213 1,196,380 5,569

$ 3,665658 3% 1,146,803  § 4,148

-11 -



Business-

Type Governmental

Activities Activities

Internal

Service

Total Funds
$ 599,280 $ 368,811
452,126 -
11,415 -
13,793 -
1,076,614 368,811
252,919 33,307
28,235 117,751
823,740 61,682
300,889 40,619
1,405,783 253,359
{329,169} 115,452
{77,522} -
157,729 -
2,408 -
-0- 6,830
82,613 6,830
{246,556} 122,282
65,000 -
{132,000} {14,011}
(67,000} {14,011}
{313,556} 108,271
5,130,162 144,960
$ 4816606 $ 253,231

-2 -



City of Corunna

Proprietary Funds

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers and granis
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid for employee benefits
Cash paid to employees

NET CASH PROVIDED {USED) BY
QOPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in
Transfers out

NET CASH FROVIDED {USED) BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital purchases
Construction grant - Federal
Interest expense and fees
Proceeds from sale of assets
Payments on borrowings

NET CASH (USED)} BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest earned

NET INCREASE {DECREASE} IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash eguivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See accompanying notes {o financial statements.

-13 -

Nonmajor
Sewer Water {(Rubbish
System System Collection)

$ 675806 § 588,556 § 55,040
{515,111) {250,726} (62,470)
{12,035) {17,007) -
{115,715) {137,204) -
32,045 183,619 {7,430)
62,500 - 2,500

- {132,000} -

62,500 {132,000) 2,600
{7,695} {149,669) -
187,729 - -
(66,591) (10,931} -
(170,000} {77,576} -
{86,557) {238,176} -0-
1,243 1,163 -

10,134 (185,394) {4,930)
(59,426} 155,725 7,289

$ {46,285) § (29669} $ 2,355




Business-

Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Internal
Service
Total Funds
$ 1,319402 % 468,811
{828,307} (64,852}
{29,042} {117,969)
{252,919} {33,307}
209,134 252,683
65,000 -
{132,000} {14,011)
(67,000} {14,011)
{157,364) (213,421)
157,729 -
{77,522) -
-0- 6,830
{247,576) -
(324,733) {206,591)
2,406 -
(180,193) 32,081
103,588 5,456
$ {76,605) § 37,537

- 44 -



City of Corunna

Proprietary Funds

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Reccnciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income {loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss}

to net cash provided {used) by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Decrease in accounts recejvable

Decrease (increase} in due from other
governmental units

Increase {decrease) in accounts payable

Increase {decrease) in accrued fiabilities

Increase in due to other funds

{Decrease)} in accrued interest payable

NET CASH PROVIDED {USED)
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

-15 -

Nonmajor
Sewer Water (Rubbish
System System Collection}
$ (417436) § 92,191 § {3,924}
233,956 66,933 -
152,645 37,465 875
65,669 (13,766) -
217 2,493 {4,381}
118 {925) -
{2,124) {7T72) -
$ 32,045 § 183,618 % (7,430)




Business-

Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Internal
Service
Total Funds
$ (820,169} % 115,452
300,889 40,619
190,885 -
51,903 -
(1,671} (3,170}
(807) {218}
-0- 100,000
(2,896) -
3 209134 & 252,683

-16 -



City of Corunna
Fiduciary Funds
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

June 30, 2009

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 54,049
Investments 13,821
TOTAL ASSETS 3 67,970
LIABILITIES
Due to individuals and agencies $ 67,970

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Corunna
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE A: DESCRIPTION OF CITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Corunna is locaied in Shiawassee County, Michigan and has a population of approximately 3,300. The
City of Corunna operates with a City Manager/Council form of government and provides services to its residents in
many areas including general government, iaw enforcement, highways and sireets, human services, and utilites
services.

The City has six {6} City Council members who are elected at large for overlapping four {4} year terms and a
Mayor elected at large for a iwo {2} year term. The Council appoints the City Manager, Finance
DirectorfTreasurer, and Assessor.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accerdance with accounting principles generalty
accepted in the United States of America {GAAP} as applied to City governments. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board {GASB) is the accepted standard-seiting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The City's more significant accounting policies are described below.

1. Reporting Entity

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; GASB Statement 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity (as amended by GASB Statement No. 39}; and Sfatement on Michigan Governmentaf
Accounting and Audifing No. 5, these financial stalements present the financial activities of the City of Corunna
{primary government), and its component units. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are,
in substance, part of the City's operations and so data from these uniis are combined with data of the primary
government. Discretely presented component units, on the other hand, are reperied in a separate column in the
governmeni-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City.

2. Discretely Presented Component Unit

The component unit coiumns in the government-wide financial statements include the financial data of the City’s
component unit {Downtown Development Authority). It is reported in a separate column to emphasize that it is
legally separaie from the City.

The governing body of the Downtown Development Authority {DDA) is appointed by the City Council, the
Authority’s budget is subject fo the approval of the City Council, the City temporarily relinquishes part of its tax
hase fo the Authority (tax increment revenues}, and the City has pledged its full faith and credit toward payment of
the Authority's debt.

3. Blended Component Units

Corunna-Caledonia Fire Department - The City of Corunna, in conjunction with Caledonia Charter Township, has
entered info an agreement that created the Corunna-Caledonia Fire Department. The Fire Depariment is
governed by a five (5} member board. The City and the Township each appeint two individuals to the governing
board. The appeinted board members seiect an additional individual io serve on the Beard as an al-arge
member. The Board's majority aliernates between the City and the Township every four years based on the
appoiniment of the at-large member.

Based on the agreement creating the Fire Department, the Township and the City are each responsible for 50% of
the annual expenditures of the Department. The City of Corunna acts as the fiscal agent to the Fire Department
and is reimbursed by the Township for the Township's share of operating expenditures. The Special Revenue Fire
Capital Acquisition Fund accounts for the City's share of revenue generated from fire runs and the City’s portion of
the repayment of loan proceeds borrowed to finance the acquisition of a fire fruck. The Agency Fire Capital
Acquisition Fund accounts for the Township's portion of the same.

The financial activities of the Corunna Historical Commission, Softball Commission, Corunna Fourth of July
Commission, and Corunna Softball Commission have been blended with the City's Special Revenue Funds.

-18 -



City of Corunna
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

NOTE A: DESCRIPTICN OF CITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

4. Joint Venture

The City participates in the following activity which is considered to be a joint venture in relation fo the City, due to
there being ongoing financial interest or responsibility:

Owosso Community Airport Board - The City of Corunna along with the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, and
Owosso and Caledonia Townships have entered inte an agreement, which created the Owosso Community Airport
Board. The Airport Board is composed of one {1} member from each of the member municipaiities. The Airport
has been reported as a fund in the December 31, 2008 financial statements of Shiawassee County. The Alrport is
expected to be seif-sufficient but based on a “10 Year Funding Model” approved by the Board each participating
municipality shall make a direct appropriation {o cover operations and development costs. The percentage share
for the funding model for each municipality is Shiawassee County and the City of Owosso 33%, Owosso and
Caledonia Townships 13%, and the Cily of Corunna 8%. The City paid $1,692 {c the Board for the year ended
June 30, 2009,

5. Joinilly Governed Organizations

The City participates in the following activities which are considered to be jointly governed organizations in relation
to the City, due to there being ne ongoing financial interest or responsibility:

Corunna Area Ambulance Service, Inc. - The City of Corunna aiong with the Townships of New Haven and
Caledonia have entered into a service agreement with Corunna Area Ambulance Service, Inc., a Michigan
nonprofit Corporation. The Carporation's board is composed of seven (7} members appointed by the corporation
and one each from the City of Carunna, and New Haven and Caledonia Townships. The City is responsible to pay
a per dwelling or equivalent unit charge far all dwellings in the City limits which is assessed to all residents on their
summer tax bills. The City paid $41,525 in per dwelling charges to Corunna Area Ambulance Service, Inc. for the
year ended June 30, 2009.

6. Basis of Presentation

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net asseis and the staternent of activities {the government-wide statements} present information
for the primary government and its component units as a whale. All non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government are included {i.e., fiduciary fund activities are net included in the government-wide statements). For
the most part, interfund activity has been eliminated in the preparation of these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by faxes and infergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The staterment of activities presents the direct functional expenses of the primary government and its compenent
units and the program revenues that support them. Direct expenses are specifically associated with a service,
program, or department and are therefore clearly identifiable {c a particular function. Program revenues are
associated with specific functions and include charges to recipients of goods or services and granis and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of that function. Revenues that
are nof required o be presented as program revenues are general revenues. This includes all taxes, interest, and
unrestricted State revenue sharing payments and other general revenues and shows how governmentai functions
are either self-financing or supported by general revenues.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fund financial statements present the City’s individual major funds and aggregated nonmajor funds. Separate
financial statements are provided for governmental funds, propristary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the
latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

NOTE A: DESCRIPTION OF CITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

6. Basis of Presentation - continued

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the
fund financial statements.

The major funds of the City are:

a. The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial rescurces of the general
government except for those that are required to be accounted for in another fund.

b. The Economic Development Fund is a Special Revenue Fund used to account for financial resources to be
used to further develop the economic growth of the City.

c. The City Improvement Fund is a Special Revenue Fund used to account for financial resources to be used for
the betterment of the City and its properties.

d. The DDA Custodial Fund is a Special Revenue Fund used to account for financial resources heid by the
primary government on behalf of the Corunna Downtown Development Autharity.

e. The Industrial Development Fund is a Capital Projects Fund used to account for the financial resources to be
used to promote industrial growth in the City.

f. The Sewer System Fund is used to account for the operations required to provide sewer services to the
general public, the costs (expenses, including depreciation) are financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

g. The Water System Fund is used to account for the operaticns required to provide water services ta the general
public, the costs {expenses, including depreciation) are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Additionally, the City reports internal service funds to account for the management of retirees’ benefits and motor
vehicles pool services provided o other departmenis on a cost reimbursement basis.

The City also reports agency funds to account for assets held by the City as the trustee or as the agent for others.
Agency Funds are, by nature, cusiadial; therefore, operation resuits are not measured.

7. Measurement Focus

The governmeni-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are presented using the ecocnomic resources
measurement focus, similar to that used by business enterprises or not-for-prefit organizations. Because another
measurement focus is used in the governmental fund financial statements, reconciliations to the government-wide
statements are provided that explain the differences in detail.

All governmental funds are presented using the current financial rescurces measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assefs and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet.
Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases
{i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current asseis.

There is no measurement focus for Agency Funds since assets equal liabilities.
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NOTE A: DESCRIPTION OF CITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

8. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reporied in the
financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardiess of the
measurement focus applied.

All governmental and similar trust funds are accounted for using the modified accruai basis of accounting. Under
this method, revenues are recognized when they become susceptible to accrual (when they become both
“measurable” and “available to finance expenditures of the current period”). Revenues that are considered
measurable but not available are recorded as a receivable and deferred revenue. Significant revenues susceptible
to accrual are special assessments and certain intergovernmental revenues. Expenditures are generally
recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
interest on leng-term debt which is recorded when due.

All proprietary and similar trust funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are
recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued to December 1, 1989, generally are fellowed
in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements {o the extent that those standards do not
conftict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Acceounting Standards Board. Governments aiso have the
option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subseqguent private-sector guidance.

Proprietary funds distinguish cperating revenues and expenses from noncperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
praprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Enterprise Funds are
charges to custemers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the costs of sales
and services, administrative expenses, and other costs of running the activity. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. H/when both restricted and
unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy {o use resiricted resources first, then unrestricted
resources as they are needed.

8. Budgeis and Budgetary Accounting

The General and Special Revenue Fund budgets shown as required supplementary information were prepared on
the same modified accrual basis used to reflect actual results. This basis is consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The City employs the following procedures in establishing the
budgetary data reftecied in the financial statements.

a. On the council meeting nearest but no later than the third Monday in May, the City Manager submits to City
Council the proposed operating budgets for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The cperating
budgets inciude proposed expenditures and resources to finance them.

b. A Public Hearing is conducted {o obiain faxpayers’ comments.

¢. Priorio July 1, the budget is legally adepted with passage by Council vole.

d. The budget is legaily adopted at the activity level for the General Fund and total expenditure level for the
Spectal Revenue Funds; hoawever, they are maintained at the account fevel for control purposes.

e. The City does not employ encumbrance accounting as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
governmental funds. Appropriations unused at June 30 are not carried forward 1o the fellowing fiscal year.
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NOTE A: __DESCRIPTION OF CITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

9. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting - continued

{.  Budgeted amounts are reported as originally adopted or amended by the City Council during the year.
Individual amendments were appropriately approved by the City Ceuncil as required.

10. Cash and Cash Eguivalenis

The City pools cash resources of various funds in order to facilitate the management of cash. Cash applicabie to a
particutar fund is readily identifiable. The balances in the pocled cash accounts are available to meet current
operating requirements. Cash and cash equivalents consist of checking, savings, and uncategorized pooled
investment accounts with a maturity from date of purchase of 90 days or less. The cash equivalents are recorded
at market value.

11. Restricted Cash
Restricted cash for the component unit is related to rental deposiis being held.
12. Investments

Investments consist of certificates of deposit with original maturities of greater than 90 days. Investments are
recorded at market value in accordance with GASB 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Ceriain
investments and for External Investment Pools, In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements,
investments are shown as current and noncurrent based on maturities within the next fiscal year.

13. Receivables

Receivables consist of amounis due from other governmental units for various financial assistance programs and
charges for services, and accounts receivable related to charges for services, interest receivable and other
amounts owed to the City at year-end.

14. Property Tax

The City of Corunna bills and collects its own property taxes and also taxes for other governmental units. The
City's property tax revenue recognition policy and related tax calendar disclosures are highlighted in the foliowing
paragraph.

Property taxes are fevied by the City of Corunna on July 1 and December 1 and are payable without penalty
through September 15 and February 14, respectively. The July 1 levy is composed of the City’s millage, special
assessments, and the school taxes. The December 1 levy s composed of county and schocls taxes. All real
property taxes not paid to the City by March 1 are turned over to the Shiawassee County Treasurer for coliection.
The Shiawassee County Treasurer purchases the receivables of all taxing disiricts on any delinquent real property
taxes. Delinquent personal property taxes are retained by the City for subsequent collection. Collections and
remitiances of all taxes are accounted for in the Current Tax Collections Agency Fund. City property tax revenues
are recognized as revenuss in the fiscal year levied.

The City is permitted ta levy taxes up to 15 mills ($15 per $1,000 of taxable valuation) for general governmental
services other than the payment of Debt Service Fund expenses, up to an additional 5 mills ($5 per $1,000 of
taxable valuation) for City Public Improvements, and up to an additionai .25 mills {25 per $1,000 of taxable
valuation) for transportation. For the year ended June 30, 2009, the City ievied 13.3044 milis per $1,000 of
assessed valuation for general governmentat services, 4.8342 miills for City Public Improvements and .25 mills for
fransportation. The total Taxable Value for the 2008 levy for property within the City was $61,698,382.
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June 30, 2009

NOTE A: DESCRIPTION OF CITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

15. Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds, including
expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets, and service debt. The
accompanying financial statements generally reflect such fransactions as operating transfers. Transfers between
governmental or proptietary funds are neited as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial
statements.

The internal service funds record charges for services to various City depariments and funds as operating
revenue, All City funds record these payments as operating expenditures/expenses.

16. Compensated Absences

City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. [n the event of termination, an employee
is paid for accumutated vacation days. Employees are not paid for accumulated sick leave. All employees with
accumulated unused vacation pay at June 30, 2009 were vesied and the total due to them, along with the reiated
payrall taxes, is recorded entirely in the government-wide financial statements.

17. Capital Asseis
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT AND COMPONENT UNIT

Capital asseis include land, buildings and additions, vehicles and equipment, water and sewer systems, and
infrastructure and are recorded {net of accumulated depreciation, if applicable) in the government-wide financial
statements under the governmental activities and component unit columns. Capital assets are those with an initial
individual cost of $1,500 or more and an esiimated useful life of more than one year. Capital assets are not
recorded in the governmental funds. Instead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in
governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the government-wide financial statements. All
purchased capital assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical
cost where no historical records exist. Danated capital asseis are valued at their estimated fair market value on
the date received.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Buildings and additions 20 - 40 years
Vehicles and equipment 5-40 years
Water and sewer sysiems 10 - 40 years
Infrastructure 40 years

18. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue recorded in the General Fund consists of amounts related {0 special assessments receivable
and amounts owed from other governmental units which will be received in future periods. Deferred revenue
recorded in the Eccnomic Development Fund censists of amounts related {o contracts receivable for future
periods. Deferred revenue recorded in the DDA Cusiodial Fund and the Deowntown Development Autherity
{component unit} consist of amounts related to a long-term lease receivable for future perieds. Nene of these
amounts are deferred in the governmeni-wide financial statements.
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NOTE A: DESCRIPTION OF CITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

19. Long-Term Cbligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are recognized as a fiability in the government-wide financial
statemenis and proprietary fund types when incurred. The portion of those liabilities expected to be paid within the
next vear are reported as current liability with the remaining amounts shown as long-term.

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due or when resources have been
accumulated in a Debt Service Fund for payment early in the following year. For other long-term obligations, only
that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability of
a governmental fund.

20. Treatment Rights

The City of Corunna has contracted with the Owosso Township - Caledonia Township Utility Authority for the right
to distribute wastewater through Authority pipe fo the City of Owosso for the freatment rights fo treat its
wastewater.

These rights are being amortized over the period of the related contract’s liability.

21. Comparative Data

Comparative data for the prior year has been presented in some of the accompanying financial statements in order
to provide an understanding of changes in financial position and operations.

NOTE B: PODLING OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND CASH OVERDRAFT

The City utilizes pocied cash accounts for approximately thirty funds. The City's balance sheet reflecis cash in
varicus funds with negative balances. These ameounts de not represent an actual bank overdraft; rather, it merely
reflects that certain funds have disbursed amounts from the City's common checking account in excess of the
amount recorded as an asset. In {otal, the bank account has a positive balance.

Cash disbursed in excess of amounis recarded as assets as of June 30, 2009, are as follows:

Pooled Nonpooled
Cash Cash and Cash Financial
Fund Overdraft Eguivalents Statements
Major proprietary funds
Water System $( 20669) § - $( 29,669)
Sewer System { 64,640 ) 15,345 ( 49,295)
Nonmaior governmental funds
Speciai revenue funds
Fire Operations { 8,048 ) - { 8,048 )
1996 G.O. Limited Tax Bonds ( 3,999 ) 4,730 731

$( 106366 ) § 20,075 $( 86281 )
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City of Corunna
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

NOTE C: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

The City utilizes various pooled cash accounts and investments for approximately thirty funds. The City's pooled
accounts consist of commen checking account, savings accounts, and various certificates of deposit.

The City's pooled cash accounts and investments are utilized by the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt
Service Funds, Capital Project Funds, Enterprise Funds, Internal Service Fund, and the Trust and Agency Funds.
Each fund’s portion of these pooled accounts is included in the cash and cash equivalents and investmenis
captions on the basic financial statements where appropriate.

The other funds of the City utilize separate savings and interest bearing checking accounts. in addition, certificates
of deposit are held separately by several of the City's funds.

In accordance with Michigan Compiled Laws, the City is authorized to invest in the following investment vehicles:

1. Bonds, securities, and cther cbligations of the United States or an agency or insirumentality of the United
States.

2. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository receipis of a State or nationally
chartered bank or a State or Federally chartered savings and loan association, savings bank, or credit union
whose deposits are insured by an agency of the United States gavernment and which maintains a principal
office or branch office locaied in this State under the laws of the State or the United States, but only if the
bank, savings and loan association, savings bank, or credit union is eligible to be a depository of surplus funds
beiong to the State under Section 5 or 6 of Act No. 105 of the Pubiic Acts of 1855, as amended, being Section
21.145 and 21.146 of Michigan Compiied Laws.

3. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the three (3) highest classifications established by not
less than two (2) standard rating services and which matures not more than 270 days after the date of
purchase.

4. The United States government or federal agency obligations repurchase agreements.
5. Bankers accepiances of United States banks.

6. Mutual funds composed of investment vehicles, which are legal for direct investiment by local units of
government in Michigan.

The United States Congress has temporarily increased Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) deposit
insurance from $100,000 to $250,000 per depositor through December 31, 2013. FDIC regulations provide that
deposits of governmental units are {o be separately insured for the amount of $250,000 for deposits in an insured
bank for interest-bearing savings depasiis and $250,000 for interest-hearing demand deposits. FDIC insurance
coverage through its Transaction Account Insurance Program provides unlimited insurance on non-interest bearing
fransaction accounts and low-interest bearing {i.e., no higher than 0.50 percent} NOW accounts, this program is
scheduled to end December 31, 2009. Furthermore, if specific deposits are regulated by siatute or bond
indenture, these specific deposits are to be separately insured for the amount of $250,000. For the purpose of
these rules, the term “savings deposits” includes NOW accounts, money market deposit accounts, and other
interest-bearing checking accounts.

Deposits

As of June 30, 2008, the carrying amounts and bank balances for each type of bank account are as follows:
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City of Corunna

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE C: CASH. CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

- CONTINUED

Depasiis - continued

Account Type

Carrying Amount

Bank Balance

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Checking and savings % 969,764 $ 987,509
Certificates of deposit 783,610 783,610
Total Primary Government 1,753,374 1,771,119
COMPONENT UNITS
Reguiar checking 70,342 70,342

Cerlificates of deposit

125,000

125,000

L b

Total Component Units 195,342 195,342
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Checking and savings 54,049 53,851

Certificates of deposit 13,921 13,921

Total Fiduciary Funds

TOTAL REPORTING ENTITY

67,970

R L .=~

$ 2016686

67,772

$ 2034233

Deposits of the City are at federally insured banks iocated in the State of Michigan with all accounts maintained in
the name of the City. As of June 30, 2009, the City accounts were insured by the FDIC for $1,309,645, and the
amount of $724,588 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Bue o significanily higher cash flow at certain periods during the year, the amount the City held as cash and cash
eguivalents increased significantly. As a result, the amount of uninsured and uncollateralized cash and cash
equivalents were substantially higher at these peak periods than at year-end.

Investmenis
As of June 30, 2009, the carrying amount and market vaiue for the investment is as follows:

Weighted

INVESTMENT TYPE Carrying Amount Market Value  Average Maturity

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Uncategorized pooled investment funds
MBIA - Michigan Ciass

$ 123,380 $ 123380 N/A

Credit Risk

State law limits investments in certain types of investments to a prime or better rating issued by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSRC’s}. As of June 30, 2009, the MBIA - Michigan Ciass investmeni
is rated AAA/V1 by Fitch Ratings.

Interest rate risk

The City will minimize interest rate risk, which is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall
due to changes in market interest rates by:
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NOTE C: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

Interest rate risk - confinued

+ Structuring the invesiment portfolic so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing
operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity

+ Investing operating funds primarily in shorterterm securities, money market mufual funds, or simitar
investment peols and limiting the average maturity of the portfolio

Concentration of credit risk

The City will minimize concentration of credit risk, which is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City's
investment in a single issuer by:

Limiting investments to the types of securities as listed in the Investment Policy

+ Pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers, infermediaries, and advisers with which the City will
do business

+ Diversifying the investment portfolic so that the impact of potential losses from any one type of security or
from any one individuai issuer will be minimized

The cash and cash equivalents and investments referred to above have been reported in either the cash and cash
equivalents or investments captions on the combined balance sheet, based upon criteria disciosed in Note A. The
following summarizes the categorization of these amounis as of June 30, 2008:

Primary Component Fiduciary Reporting
Government Unit Funds Entity
Cash and cash equivalenis $ 1,093,144 $ 66,022 $ 54,049 $ 1,213,215
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted - 4,320 - 4,320
Investmenis - current 158,610 - 13,821 172,531
Investments - noncurrent 625,000 125,000 - 750,000

$ 1,876,754 $ 195342 $ 67970 3 2,140,066

NOTE D: INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following scheduie details interfund receivables and payables related to the primary government at June 30,
2009:

Due to Industrial Development Fund from:
Internal service funds § 100,000

Amounts appearing as interfund payables and receivables arise from two types of fransactions. One type of
transaction is where a fund will pay for a good or service that at least a portion of the benefit belongs to another
fund. The second type of transaction is where one fund provides a good or service to another fund. Balances
at the end of the year are for fransfers that have not cleared as of the balance sheet date.

NOTE E: INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Permanent reallecation of resources between funds of the reporting entity is classified as interfund transfers. For
the purpose of the statement of aciivities, all interfund transfers between individual governmental funds, business
type funds, and component units have been eliminated.
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NOTE E: INTERFUND TRANSFERS - CONTINUED

Transfers to Industrial Deveiopment Fund from:
General Fund

Transfers to Sewer System Fund from:
City Improvement Fund

Transfers to nonmajor business-type funds from:
General Fund

Transfers to nonmajor governmental funds from:

General Fund § 189,436
City Improvement Fund 250,595
Water System Fund 132,000
Internat service funds 14,011
Nonmajor governmental funds 166,763

$ 752805

The fransfers made during the year fo various funds were for the purposes of funding specific projects within
certain funds or to cover operational costs reflected in a particular fund,

NOTE F: LONG-TERM CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Primary Government

The City has several loans fo individuals and businesses made through the Economic Development {Special
Revenue} Fund. The amounts atiributabie to these long-ferm contracts receivable have been recorded in the
Econemic Develepment Fund as contracts receivable and deferred revenue. The following is a summary of future
annual revenue from debiors that currently have signed promissory notes with the City:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 96,441 $ 0,726 $ 99,128
2011 24,546 7,854 32,400
2012 100,606 748 101,354

$ 221,563 $ 18,328 $ 232882

One of the loans receivable included in the above schedule was In default as of June 30, 2009. The entire
outstanding principal related teo this loan was included in the year ending June 30, 2010. No interest was included
for this loan because of the uncertainty of that amount and the collectability of amounts outstanding at year end.

Compenent Unit

The DDA has sold certain properties to the County of Shiawassee under a long-term contract. The amounts
attributable to this long-term confract receivable has been recorded in the Compeonent Unit Fund as contracts
receivable and the portion that is not current at June 30, 2009 is reported as deferred revenue. The following is a
summary of the fuiure annual revenue {i.e. deferred}:
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NOTE F: LONG-TERM CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE - CONTINUED

Compenent Unit - continued

Years Ending
June 30

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

20156-2017

There is an additional $5,212 in other contracts receivable in the DDA Fund for a total of $632,418,

NOTE G: CAPITAL ASSETS

Total
$ 80,958
81,458
81,958
82,458
82,958

217,416

$_ 627,206

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Subtotal

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and additions
Vehicles and equipment
Infrastructure

Subtotal
Less accumuiated depreciation for
Buildings and additions
Vehicles and equipment
Infrastructure
Subtotal

Net capital assets being depreciated

Capital asseis, net

Balance Additions/ Additions/ Balance
July 1, 2008 Reclassifications Reclassifications  June 30, 2009
$ 279,000 3 - $ - $ 279,000

197,891 197,803 { 315,765 ) 79.929
476,891 197,803 { 315,765 ) 358,929

2,860,550 234,707 - 3,095,257

1,950,951 254 976 { 61,878) 2,144,049

7.128.187 223,143 - 7,351,330

11,939,688 712,826 { 61,878) 12,580,636

{1,987,970 ) { 52,235 - (2,040,205 )
{1,419,038 ) { 105,493 ) 61,878 {1,462,653 )
{1.658,819 } { 179,898 ) - {1.838,717 )
{5,065,827 ) { 337,626 ) 61,878 {5341575)

6,873,861 375,200 -0- 7,249,081
$ 7,350,752 $ 573,003 $( 315,765 ) $_7.607,990
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NOTE G: CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED

Primary Government - continued

Depreciation expense was charged te the following governmental activities:

General government 18,222
Public safety 70,289
Public works 221,465
Recreation and culiural 27.850
Total depreciation expense $§ 337,626
Balance Additions/ Additions/ Balance
July 1, 2008 Reclassifications Reclassifications  June 30, 2009
Business-type activities
{Sewer system)
Capital assetis not being depreciated
Land $ 1 $ - - $ 1
Capital assets being depreciated
Sewer system 7,417,521 7,695 - 7,425,216
Equipment 88,995 - { 80,000} 8,995
Subtotal 7,606,518 7,695 ( 80,000) 7,434,211
Less accumutated depreciation for:
Sewer system (2,207,166 } ( 177,958) - (2,385,124
Equipment { 32,847 ) {_ 53.900) 80.000 { 8,747
Subtotal (2,240,013 ) ( 231,858) 80,000 (2,391,871
Net capital assets being depreciated 5,266,503 { 224163} -0- 5,042,340
Capital assets, net $ 5,266,504 i 4,163 ) -0- $ 5,042,341
Business-type activities
(Water system}
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 126 $ - - $ 126
Construction in progress 32,033 149,669 (171,952 ) 9,780
Subtotal 32,189 149,669 ( 171,952 ) 9,876
Capital assets being depreciated
Water system 2,056,517 171,952 - 2,228,469
Equipment 46,261 - - 48,261
Subtotal 2,102,778 171,952 -0- 2,274,730
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NOTE G: CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED

Primary Government - continued

Business-type activities
{(Water system) - continued
Less accumuiated depreciation for:
Water system
Equipment

Subtotal
Net capital assets being depreciated
Capital assets, net

Component Unit (DDA}
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings
Equipment and fixiures
Improvements

Subtatal
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Equipment and fixtures
Improvements
Subiotal
Net capital asseis heing depreciated

Capital assets, net

NOTE H: LONG-TERM DEBT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
July 1, 2008 Reclassifications Reclassifications  June 30, 2009
$( 955219) $ 65,709) $ $(1,020,928 )

{ 34642 ) { 1,224 ) { 35866)
{ 989,861 } { 66,933} (1,056,794 )

1,112,917 105,019 1,217,936
$§ 1,145,076 $__ 254 688
$ 691,670 $ - $ $ 691,670

18,952 - 18,952

926,112 - 926,112

1,636,734 -0- 1,636,734
{ 271,409 ) { 17,511) { 288,920)
{ 18,952 - { 18,952)
{ 123,335 { 88636 ) { 211971)
{ 413,696 ) { 106,147 ) { 519,843 )

1,223,038 { 106,147 ) 1,116,891
$ 1,223038 § 106,147) $§ -0 $.1,116,891

The following is a summary of changes in iong-term debt (including current portion) of the City for the year ended

June 30, 2008.

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities
1998 Transporiation Bonds
2000 General Obligation
Impravement Bonds
2001 General Obligation

Improvernent Bonds

2003 Instaliment Purchase Agreement
Instaliment Note - fire truck

2007 Installment Purchase Agreement
MEDC Loan

Compensated absences

Amounts
Balance Balance  Due Within
July 1. 2008  Additions Delefions June 30, 2009 One Year
$ 95,000 - $ 15,000 % 80,000 $ 20,000
570,000 - 60,000 510,000 60,000
240,000 - 70,000 170,000 80,000
71,960 - 35,275 36,685 38,685
150,000 - 18,750 131,250 18,750
45,000 - 22,500 22.500 22,500
390,000 - 32,500 357,500 37,500
42,615 45,891 53,251 35,255 28,204
1,604,575 45,891 307,276 1,343,190 303,639
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City of Corunna
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE H: LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

Balance

Balance

Amounts
Due Within

July 1, 2008 Additions Deletions  June 30, 2008 One Year

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT - CONTINUED
Business-type Activities

Water Supply and Sewage
improvement Bonds - 1996 (sewer) $ 300,000 % -3 30,000 & 270,000 % 35,000
improvement Bonds - 1980 (sewer) 190,000 - 15,000 175,000 15,000
General Cbligation Bonds (water) 150,000 - 50,000 100,000 50,000
2005 General Cbligation
Improvement Bonds {sewer) 505,000 - 65,000 440,000 65,000
2006 General Cbligaticn
Improvement Bonds {sewer) 625,000 - 60,000 565,000 60,000
Water Tower [PA - 1999 {water) 42,028 - 27,576 14,4562 14,452
1,812,028 -0~ 247,576 1,564,452 239,452
TCTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 3,416,603 45,891 554,852 2,907,642 543,091
COMPONENT UNIT FUNDS
Downtown Development Authority
Instafiment loan 130,374 - 38,024 92,3580 37,059
Land centract payable 60,000 - 31,000 29,000 20.000
TOTAL COMPONENT UNIT 190,374 -0- 69.024 121,350 57,089
$ 3606977 $ 45891 $_ 623,875 $ 3028903 §_ 600,150
Significant details regarding cutstanding long-term debt {including cuirent portion) are presented below:
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT AND BLENDED COMPONENT UNIT
General Cbligation Bonds {Pavable from Debt Service Funds)
$220,000 1998 County of Shiawassee, City of Corunna Transportation Bonds dated April 1,
1998, due in annual installments of $20,000 through August 1, 2012, with interest ranging
from 4.90 to 5.05 percent. $ 80,000
$895,000 2000 County of Shiawassee, City of Corunna Public Improvement Bonds dated
Cctober 11, 2000, due in annual installments ranging from $60,000 to $85,000 through
November 1, 2015, with interest ranging from 5.15 o 5.30 percent payable semi-annually. 510,000
$490,000 2001 County of Shiawassee, City of Corunna Public Improvement Bonds dated
June 1, 2001, due in annual installments ranging from $80,000 to $90,000 through May 1,
2011, with interest ranging from 4.65 to 4.75 percent, payable semi-annually. 170,000
$._. 760,000
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City of Corunna
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE H: LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

Installment Purchase Agreement {Payable from Industrial Development Fund}

$200,000 2003 Instaliment Purchase Agreement dated November 6, 2003, due in cne
instaliment of $36,685 on November 6, 2009, with inferest ai 4.00 percenf. The
Agreement is for the purchase of Jand costing $200,000. $ 36,685

Instaliment Note - Fire Truck (Payable from Fire Capital Acquisition Fund}

$187,500 2007 Installment Note for fire truck dated May 15, 2007, due in annual
installments of $18,750 through May 15, 2016, with interest at 4.50 percent. $§ 131,250

installment Purchase Agreement {Payable from Municipal Buiiding Fund}

$67,500 2007 Installment Purchase Agreement dated December 28, 2007, due in annual
installments of $22,500 through January 7, 2010, with interest at 5.00 percent. The
Agreement is for the purchase of real estate costing $67,500. $ 22500

MEDC | oan {Pavable from General Fund}

$450,000 2005 MEDC Loan Agreement dated September 1, 2005, due in annual
instaliments ranging from $37,500 to $62,500 through December 13, 2015, with no
interest. $ 357,500

Compensated Absences - accrued vacation, sick ieave, and longevity

Individual employees have vested rights upon termination of employment to receive payments for unused vacation
and sick leave, and also receive an annual longevity payment. The dollar amounts, including related payroll taxes,
of these vested rights have been recorded in the government-wide financial statements. They amount to
approximately $35,255 at June 30, 2009.

Water Supply and Sewage Disposal System Bonds

$550,000 1996 Wastewater Treatment System Revenue Bonds dated February 1, 1996,
due in annual instailments ranging from $35,000 {o $40,000 through November 1, 2015,
with interest ranging frem 5.20 to 5.35 percent. $ 270,000

$420,000 USDA-FMHA Sewer Revenue Bonds dated August 15, 1980, due in annual
installments ranging from $15,000 to $20,000 threugh August 1, 2020, with interest at 5.0
percent, payable semi-annually. 175,000

$700,000 1992 Shiawassee County, City of Corunna Water Supply System (General
Obligation} Improvement Bonds dated August 1, 1992, due in annual instaliments of
$50,000 through May 1, 2011, with interest at 6,25 percent, payable semi-annually. 100,000

$685,000 2005 County of Shiawassee, City of Corunna Capital Improvement Bends dated
April 1, 2005, due in annual installmenis ranging from $65,000 to $80,000, with interest
ranging from 3.50 to 4.20 percent, payable semi-annually. 440,000

$685,000 2006 County of Shiawassee, City of Corunna Capital Improvement Bonds dated
July 6, 2008, due in annuai instaliments ranging from $60,000 to $80,000, with interest
ranging from 4.05 to 4.45 percent, payabie semi-annuaily. 565,000

$ 1,550,000
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City of Corunna
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE H: LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

Instaliment Purchase Agreement - Enterprise {Water) Fund

$224,200 1999 Installment Purchase Agreement dated September 20, 1999, due in one
installment of $14,452 on November 1, 2008, with interest at 5.56 percent. i 14,452

COMPONENT UNIT - DISCRETELY PRESENTED
$346,227 Downtown Development Authority bank promissory note dated September 27,

2000, due in monthly payments of $3,615 the first of each month including menthly interest
on the unpaid balance at .5 percent below the prime rate. $ 92 350

$300,000 Land Contract dated December 31, 2005, due in annual instailments of $20,000
through January &, 2011, with no interest. $ 29,000

The annual requirements to pay the debt principal and interest culstanding for the bonds and contracts are as
follows:

Primary Government

MEDC
General Water Supply & Sewage Installment Loan
Obligation Bonds Disposal System Bonds Agreements and Notes Pavable
Year Ending
June 30, = Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal

2010 § 160,000 § 34,803 § 225000 § 66950 & 92,387 % 8,898 § 37,500

2011 175,000 26,670 235,000 54,713 18,750 5,063 42,500
2012 80,000 20,005 190,000 45,114 18,750 4,219 47,500
2013 95,000 15,194 200,000 36,576 18,750 3,375 52,500
2014 75,000 10,733 205,000 27,573 18,780 2,531 57,500
2015-2019 165,000 8,877 475,000 37,271 37,501 2,531 120,000
2020 - - 20,000 500 - - -

$ 760000 $ 116372 § 1,550,000 $§ 268697 $§ 204888 § 26617 3 357,500 "

*This is an interest-free ioan.

Component Unit

Instailment Loan Land Coniract
Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Principai
2010 3 37,059 3 6,329 3 20,000
2011 55,291 3,524 9,000
$...92350 § 9853 $ 29000 *

*This is an interest-free loan.
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City of Corunna
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE I: RETIREMENT PLAN

Pian Descripticn

The City participates in the Michigan Municipal Employees Retirement System, an agent multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan that covers all eligible full-time employees of the City. The system provides
retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. The Michigan Municipal
Employees Retirement System issues a publicly avaiiable financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the system. That report may be obtained by writing to the Sysiem at 1134
Municipal Way, Lansing, Michigan 48917,

Funding Policy

The obligation to contribute to and maintain the system for these employees was established by the City
Commission and by negotiation with the City’s collective bargaining units. The pian requires no contribution from
the emplovees.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ended June 30, 2009 the City's annual pension cost of $125,080 for the plan was equal {o the City's
required and actual contribution. The annual required contribution was determined as part of an actuarial vaiuation
at December 31, 2008, using the entry age normal cost method. Significant actuartal assumptions used include {a}
a 8.00 percent investment rate of return {b) projected salary increases of 4.5 percent per year compounded
annually, aitributable to inflation (¢} additionai salary increases ranging from 0% to 4.2% per year depending on
age, seniority and merit, and (d) assumption benefits will not increase after retirement. The actuarial vaiue of
assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short term volatility over a four {4} year period.
The unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis. The
remaining amortization period is ten {10} years.

Three {3} vear trend information

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2007 2008
Actuarial value of assets $ 2,726,295 $ 2,858,180 $ 2,881,375
Actuarial accrued liability {AAL) {entry age) 3,777,769 4,002,017 4,293,014
Unfunded AAL 1,051,475 1,143,837 1,411,639
Funded ratio 72 % 71 % 67 %
Covered payroll 573,985 611,254 590,302
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 183 % 187 % 239 %

Year Ended June 30,

2007 2008 009
Annual pension cost $ 111,106 $ 125,125 $ 125,000
Percentage of APC contributed 100 % 100 % 100 %

Net pension obligation

This trend information was obtained from the most recently issued actuarial reports.
NOTE J: FUND BALANCE RESERVES

Reserved fund balance is used to earmark a portion of fund balance to indicate that it is not appropriate for
expenditures or has been legally segregated for a specific fulure use.
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City of Corunna
NCTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE J: FUND BALANCE RESERVES - CONTINUED
The following are the various fund balance reserves as of June 30, 2009
Nonmaijor governmental funds

Debt service $ 5,315
Perpetual care 71,700

NOTE K: RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Restrictions of net assets shown in the government-wide financial statements indicate that restrictions imposed by
the funding source ar some cther cuiside source which precludes their use for unrestricted purposes. The
following are the various net asset restrictions as of June 30, 2009:

Governmental Activities
Cther purposes

City improvements $ 77,117
Major street 164,289
Local street 38,769
Cemetery perpetual care 71,700
Downtown development 150,000
Fire capital acquisition 57,484
Industrial development 683,010

$ 1,242,360

Business-type Activities
Restricted for debt service
Sewer System Fund $.___ 70,938

NOTE L: POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

In addition to providing pension benefits, the City provides certain heaith care benefits for empicyees who retire
under the City's pension plan. All City employees may become eligible for those benefits if they reach the normal
retirement age 50 with 25 years of credited service or age 55 with 15 years of credited service or afer age 60 with
10 years of credited service with the City.

The cost of retiree health care benefits is recognized as an expenditure as insurance premiums are paid.

For the year ended June 30, 2009, six retirees received benefits. The costs for the year ended June 30, 2009
totaled $114,289 and were paid from the General Fund.

UPCOMING REPORTING CHANGE

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has recently released Statement Number 45, Accounting and
Reporfing by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The pronouncement provides
guidance for iocal units of government in recognizing the cast of retiree health care, as well as any “other”
postemployment benefits {other than pensions}. The rules will cause the governmeni-wide financial statements to
recognize the cost of providing retiree health care coverage over the working life of the employee, rather than at
the time the health care premiums are paid. The pronouncement is effective for the year ending June 30, 2010.
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City of Corunna
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE M: RISK MANAGEMENT

The City participates in a pool, the Michigan Municipal Liability and Property Pool, with other municipalities for
property, auto, liability, and crime losses. The pool is organized under Public Act 138 of 1982, as amended as a
governmential group property and casualty self insurance pool. In the event the pocl's claims and expenses for a
policy year exceed the total normal annual premiums for said years, all members of the specific pool's policy year
may be subject to special assessment to make up the deficiency. The City has not been informed of any special
assessmenis being required.

The City also participates in a pool, the Michigan Municipal League Workers' Compensation Fund, with other
municipalities for workers’ compensation losses. The peol is organized under Public Act 317 of 1969, as
amended. In the event the pool’s claims and expenses for a policy vear exceed the total normal annual premiums
for said years, all members of the specific pocl’s policy year may be subject to special assessment to make up the
deficiency. The City has not been informed of any special assessments being required.

NOTE N: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are legai actions pending with the City. Due to the inconciusive nature of many of the actions, it is not
possible for Legal Counsel to determine the probable outcome or a reasonable estimate of the City's potential
liability, if any. Those actions for which a reasonatie estimate can be determined of the City's potential liability and
that would not be covered by insurance and reserves, if any, are considered by City Management and Legal
Counsel to be immaterial.

NOTE O: EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

Michigan Public Act 621 of 1978, Sections 18 and 19, as amended, provides that a local governmental unit not
incur expenditures in excess of the amounts appropriated.

The approved budgets of the City have been adopted at the activity level for the General Fund and the total
expenditure level for the Special Revenue Funds.

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the City incurred certain expenditures in the General Fund and cne (1)
Special Revenue fund in excess of the amounis apprepriated as foliows:

Amounts Amounts
Appropriated Expended Variance
General Fund
General Government
Clerk/Treasurer $ 97,805 $ 59,286 $ 1,481
Special Revenue Funds
City Improvement Fund 343,095 343,855 764

NOTE P: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 30, 2009, the City entered into a lease agreement with the Community District Library. The City will lease
the Olmsted Room of 210 East Corunna Ave. to the Library for the Libraries' office and activities/meeting room.
The lease is for three (3} years beginning Sepiember 1, 2009 at a cost of $800 per month. After the three (3}
years, the lease will continue on a month to month basis until it cancelled by either party.
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City of Corunna
General Fund
BUDGETARY COMPARISCN SCHEDULE - REVENUES

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Qriginal Final Aciual {Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes
Properly taxes $ 796,096 % 796,096 $ 794459 % (1,837)
Industrial and commercial facilities 17,425 17,425 17,428 -0-
Tax collection fees 34,000 34,000 37,237 3,237
Total taxes 847,521 847,521 849,121 1,600
Licenses and permits
City licenses and permits 4,380 4,360 4828 468
Franchise fee 21,500 21,500 21,115 {385}
Total licenses and permits 25,860 25,860 25,843 83
Intergovernmentat
Siate
Sales tax 365,127 365,127 357,319 {7,808}
Cther 2,500 2,500 1,071 {1,429}
Total intergovernmential 367,627 367,827 358,390 {9,237)
Charges for services
Recreational fees 23,200 1,200 1,481 281
Administration charges 247 458 247,458 271,115 23,657
Total charges for services 270,858 248,658 272,596 23,938
Fines and forfeits
Parking 750 750 785 35
Ordinance 7,350 7,350 11,752 4,402
Total fines and forfeits 8,100 8,100 12,537 4,437
Interest and rents
[nterest on investmenis 45,000 45,000 20,714 (24,286}
Rental fees 34,212 21,862 24,362 2,500
Total interest and rents 79,212 66,862 45,076 {21,786}
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City of Corunna

General Fund

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - REVENUES - CONTINUED

Year Ended June 30, 2009

REVENUES - Continued
Other
Sidewalk and other
Fireworks proceeds
Private donations
Contributions from other governmental units
Other

Total other

TOTAL REVENUES

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)

$ 7360 % 7360 § 7,553 % 193
14,000 14,000 13,000 {1,000)
8.100 250 105 {145)

2,200 - - -0-
43,728 43,727 53,285 9,568
75,388 65,337 73,943 8,606

$ 1674366 § 1629865 § 1637606 § 7,641
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City of Corunna
General Fund

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES BY ACTIVITY

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Paositive
Criginal Final Actual {Negative)
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Legislative $ 50,356 $ 50,356 § 32662 $ 17,694
City Manager 121,566 123,566 120,097 3,469
Clerk/Treasurer 97,805 97,805 99,286 (1,481)
Assessor 79,611 79,611 76,906 2,705
Elections 5,500 5,500 4,402 1,088
Municipal building 45,940 55,440 52,319 3,121
Internal services 85,484 85,484 79,969 5,515
Other 34,581 10,665 1,851 8,814
Total general government 520,843 508,427 467,492 40,935
Public safety
Poiice department 407,586 405,794 393,387 12,407
Crossing guard 2,228 2,228 1,663 565
Fire department 71,417 71,417 60,435 10,982
Total public safety 481,231 479,439 455,485 23,954
Pubiic warks
General services 332,884 329,854 319,084 10,810
Drains at large 500 500 589 {89)
Total public works 333,394 330,394 319,673 10,721
Community and economic development
Planning commission 550 550 425 125
Recreation and cuitural
Parks maintenance 79,248 - - -0-
Summer recreation 27,200 - - -0-
Mitchell Fields 1,614 - - -0-
Aciivities and evenis 5,500 - - -0-
Historical village 354 - - -0-
Community center 22,042 - - -0-
Total recreation and cultural 135,958 -0- -0- -0~
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City of Corunna
Generat Fund

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES BY ACTIVITY - CONTINUED

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Paositive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negative)
EXPENDITURES - CONTINUED
Current - Continued
Other
{nsurance 3 21,700 $ 21,700 § 18,081 $ 3,619
Retiree benefits 100,627 122,116 122,116 Q-
Total other 131,327 143,816 140,197 3,619
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,603,303 1,462,626 1,383,272 79,354
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out

Local street fund 10,000 10,000 10,000 Q-
Parks improvement fund 2,462 2,962 2,962 -0-
Parks and recreation fund - 90,231 90,231 -0-
Cemetery fund 25,000 25,000 25,000 -0~
Forest fund 2,000 2,000 2,000 -0-
Heritage park fund 500 - - -0-
Industrial development fund 48,152 48,152 48,152 -0-
Dam construction fund 2,500 2,500 2,500 -0~
Municipal Building fund 50,523 50,523 50,523 <0~
Centennial fund 1,500 6,220 6,220 -0-
Rubbish collection fund 2,500 2,500 2,500 -0-
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES 145,137 240,088 240,088 -0-

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES $ 1,748,440 $1,702,714 $1623360 § 79,354
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City of Corunna
Economic Development Fund
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Interest and rents $ 1,300 $ 1,300 $ 1,360 $ 60
Other
Loan repayment 18,000 45,981 46,582 601
TOTAL REVENUES 19,300 47,2841 47,942 661
EXPENDITURES
Current
Community and economic development 2,000 22,000 20,034 1,966
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 17,300 25,281 27,908 2,627
Fund balance, beginning of year 32,455 32,455 32,455 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 49,755 $ 57,736 $ 50,363 $ 2,627
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City of Corunna
City Improvement Fund
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negaiive)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 304,599 $ 304,599 $ 303,824 $ (775}
Interest and rents 8,000 8,000 8,344 344
Other 12,731 12,731 51,828 39,097
TOTAL REVENUES 325,330 325,330 363,996 38,666
EXPENDITURES
Current
Community and economic development 20,000 30,000 30,764 (764)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 305,330 295,330 333,232 37,902
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers out {313,095 (313,095) {313,005) -0-
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE {7,765) {17,765) 20,137 37,802
Fund balance, beginning of year 586,980 56,980 56,880 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 49,215 $ 38,215 $ 77117 $ 37,802
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City of Corunna
DDA Custodial Fund
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - Local $ 52,500 $ 52,500 $ 32,500 $ {20,000}
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal 52,500 52,500 32,500 20,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -0- -0- -0- -0-
Fund balance, beginning of year 150,000 160,000 150,000 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ -0-
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City of Corunna
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2009

Special
Major Local Fire
Street Street Capital
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivaients $ 139667 $ 20,780 § 43,563
Investments - - 13,921
Accounts receivable - - -
Due from other governmental units
State 25,845 9,142 -
Local - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 165512 § 38,931 3 57,484
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payabie $ 1,223 3 - 3 -
Accrued liabilities - 162 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,223 162 -0-
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for
Perpetual care - - -
Debt service - - -
Unreserved
Undesignated, reporied in
Special revenue funds 164,289 38,769 57,484
Capital projects - - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 164,289 38,769 57,484
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 185512 & 38,931 $ 57,484
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Revenue

Fire Parks and Parks Siu Coults
Operations Recreation Cemetery Improvement Municipal Recreation
Fund Fund Fund Fund Building Fund

3 (8,048 § 26,524 % 5172 § 20362 % 45,008 %

- 153 - - -
43,694 - - - -
$ 35646 $ 26677 $ 5172 $ 20362 $ 45008 % -0-
$ 11,954 $ 3652 § 40 3 448§ 498 $
22,190 2,260 569 - -
34,144 5,912 609 448 498 -0-
1,502 20,765 4,563 19,914 44,510
1,502 20,765 4,563 19,914 44,510 -0-
$ 35646 $ 26677 % 5172 § 20,362 $ 45008 3 -0-
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City of Corunna

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

COMBEINING BALANCE SHEET - CONTINUED

June 30, 2009

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivaienis
Investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governmental units
State
Local

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for
Perpetual care
Debt service
Unreserved
Undesignated, reported in
Special revenue funds
Capital projects

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES

- AT -

Special

Heritage Fourth

Forest Park of July
Fund Memorial Commission
$ 4,624 - % 17,430
$ 4,624 -0- % 17,430
$ - -3 -
-0- -0- -0-
4,624 - 17,430
4,624 -0- 17,430
$ 4,624 -0  $ 17,430




Revenue Debt Service

1996 G.O. 1998 MTF

Softball Historical Building Limited Tax Bonds

Commission Commission Department Centennial Bonds Payable
$ 16,578  § 15,736  § 4131  § 2178 § 731 1
$ 16,578 § 15736 § 4131 § 2178 & 731 1
$ - $ - § 1635 § - % - -
-0- -0- 1,635 -0- -0- -Q-
- - - - 731 1
16,578 15,736 2,496 2,178 - -
16,578 15,736 2,496 2,178 731 1
$ 16,578 % 15736 & 4131 & 2,178 & 731 1
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City of Corunna
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - CONTINUED

June 30, 2009

Debt Service Capital
2000 G.O. 2001 G.0. East Corunna
Limited Tax Limited Tax Construction
Bonds Bonds Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 477 3 4106 28,409
Investments - - -
Accounts receivabie - - -
Due from other governmental units
State - - -
Locatl - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 477 $ 4,106 § 28,409
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - % - % -
Accrued liabitities - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES -0- -0- -0-
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for
Perpetual care - - -
Debt service 477 4,106 -
Unreserved
Undesignated, repcrted in
Special revenue funds - - -
Capital projects - - 28,409
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 477 4,106 28,409
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 477 $ 4,106 $ 28,409
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Projects Permanent
Dam W. Corunna Cemetery
Canstruction Avenue Perpetual
Fund Enhancement Care Total
3 15,957 $ 175789 § 27,011 $ 615,195
- - 44,689 58,610
- - - 163
- - - 34,987
- - - 43,694
5 15,957 $ 175,789 % 71,700 § 752639
$ - $ - 5 - % 19,450
- ~ - 25,181
-0- -0- -0- 44,631
- - 71,700 71,700
- - - 5,318
- - - 410,838
15,957 178,789 - 220,155
15,957 175,789 71,700 708,008
$ 15,857 $ 175789 % 71,700 § 752,639
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City of Corunna
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Special
Major Local Fire
Sireet Street Capital
REVENUES
intergovernmental - State $ 160,077 § 67,317 § -
intergovernmental - local - - 20,000
Charges for services - - 12,798
Licenses and permits - - -
Interest and rents 1,593 177 -
Other - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 161,670 67,494 32,798

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government - -

Public safety - -
Public works 146,165 62,966 -
Health and welfare - - -
Recreation and cultural - - -
Other - - -
Debt service
Principal - - 18,750
Interest and fiscal agent fees - - 6,752
Capital outlay - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 146,165 62,966 35,030
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 15,505 4,628 {2,232)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers in - 20,000 -
Transfers out {144,718) - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES {USES) {144,718) 20,000 -0-
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES {129,213) 24,528 (2,232)
Fund balances, teginning of year 293,502 14,241 59,716
Fund balances, end of year $ 164,289 § 38769 % 57,484
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Revenue

Fire Parks and Parks Stu Coutts
QOperations Recreation Cemetery Improvement Municipal Recreation
Fund Fund Fund Fund Buiiding Fund
$ - % - § - § 29,233 % - % -
- 2,200 - - 8,392 -
116,702 25,234 17.670 - 5,970 -
- 13,704 - 1,500 5,400 -
- 7,388 - 7,844 - -
116,702 48,526 17,670 38,577 19,762 -0-
- - - - 88,753 -
116,702 - - - - -
- - 41,073 - - -
- 120,087 - - - -
- - 1,051 4,000 - -
- - - - 22,500 -
- - - - 2,250 -
- 2,340 - 52,970 - -
116,702 122,427 42,124 56,970 113,603 -0-
-0- {73,901) (24,454} {18,393) (93,741) -0-
- 100,880 25,000 14,358 64,534 -
- (6,214) - - - (10,650}
-0- 94,666 25,000 14,358 64,634 (10,650}
-0- 20,765 546 {4,035) {29,207} {10,650}
1,502 - 4,017 23,949 73,717 10,650
$ 1,502 % 20,765  § 4563 % 19,914 % 44510  § -0-
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City of Corunna
Nenmajor Governmental Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Special

Heritage Fourth
Forest Park of July
Fund Memorial Commission

REVENUES
Intergovernmental - State $ -5 - 3% -
Intergovernmental - local - - -
Charges for services - - -
Licenses and permits - - -
Interest and rents - - 128
Other - - 44,081

TOTAL REVENUES -0- Q- 44 209

EXPENDITURES

Current
General government - - -
Public safety - - -
Public works - - -
Health and welfare - -
Recreation and cultural 2,360 - 44,556
Other - - -

Debt service
Principal - - -
Interest and fiscal agent fees - - -

Capital outlay - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,360 -0- 44,556

EXCESS OF REVENUES GVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (2,360) -0- (347)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 2,000 -
Transfers out - {5,181} -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 2,000 (5,181) -0-

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (360) (5,181) (347)

Fund bhalances, beginning of year 4,084 5,181 17,777

Fund balances, end of year $ 4624 % 0- % 17,430
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Revenue Debt Service

1996 G.O. 1998 MTF

Softball Historical Building Limited Tax Bonds

Commission Commission Depariment Centennial Bonds Payable
$ - 3 - 3 -3 - § - -
35,082 - - - - -
- - 16,604 - - -
- 5,040 - - 19 -
75 5,814 - 3,434 - -
35,157 10,854 16,604 3,434 19 -0-
- - 19,365 - - -
35,160 13,867 - - - -
- 75 322 8,026 - -
. . - - - 15,000
- - - - - 4,650
35,160 13,942 19,687 8,026 -0- 19,650
(3) {3,088) (3,083) {4,592) 19 (19,650)
- - - 6,220 - 19,650
-0- -0- -0- 6,220 -0- 19,650
{3) (3,088) {3,083} 1,628 19 -0-
16,581 18,824 5,579 550 712 1
$ 16,578  $ 15,736  § 249 $ 2178  $ 731 1
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REVENUES
Intergovernmental - State

City of Corunna

Nonmajor Governmentat Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED

Year Ended June 30,

2009

Debt Service

Capital

Intergovernmental - local

Charges for services
Licenses and permits
Interest and rents

Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government

Public safety
Public works

Health and welfare

Recreation and cultural

Other
Debt service
Principal

Interest and fiscal agent fees

Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER} EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES})

Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

2000 G.O. 2001 G.O. East Corunna
Limited Tax Limited Tax Construction
Bonds Bonds Fund
3 - 3 - $ -

-0- -0- -0-
60,000 70,000 -
28,608 0,838 -

- - 123,919

88,608 79,838 123,919
{88,608} (79,838) {123,919)
88,607 79,838 148,500
88,607 79,838 148,500

{1 -0- 24 581

478 4,106 3,828

$ 477 $ 4,106 $ 28,409
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Projects Permanent

Dam W. Corunna Cemetery
Constfruction Avenue Perpetual
Fund Enhancement Care Total

$ - % - % - % 256,627
- - - 30,592

- " 8,095 221,551

- 16,604

- - 1,004 28,565

- - ~ 68,636

-0- -0- 9,099 622,575

; - - 88,753
- - - 145,595
- - - 209,131
- - - 41,073
; - - 216,030
- - - 13,474

- - - 186,250
- - 52,098
- 6,138 - 185,367

-0- 6,138 -0- 1,137,771

-0- {6,138) 9,099 {515,196)

2,500 180,718 - 752,805
- - . {166,763)

2,500 180,718 -0- 586,042

2,500 174,580 9,099 70,846

13,457 1,209 62,601 637,162

3 15957 & 175789 % 71,700 § 708,008
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City of Corunna

Internal Service Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash eguivalents

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets being depreciated, net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Other acecrued liabiiities
Due to other funds

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets
Unrestricied

TOTAL NET ASSETS

June 30, 2009

Motor Retiree
Pool Benefits Total
$ 5,545 $ 31,092 $ 37,537
317,305 - 317,305
322,850 31,002 354,842
1,570 - 1,570
41 - 41
100,000 - 100,000
101,611 -0- 101,611
317,305 - 317,305
{96,066) 31,0892 {64,074}
$ 221,239 $ 31,992 $ 263,231

-57-



City of Corunna
Internal Service Funds
COMBINING STATEMENT CF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Moter Retiree
Poal Bengfits Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 221,360 $ 147,451 $ 368,811
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 33,307 - 33,307
Employee benefits 2,292 115,459 117,751
Cther operating costs 61,682 - 61,682
Depreciation and amortization 40,619 - 40,619
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 137,800 115,459 253,359
QOPERATING INCCME 83,460 31,892 115,452
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Proceeds on sale of asset 6,830 - 6,830
INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 90,290 31,992 122,282
TRANSFERS
Transfer out {14,011) - {14,011)
CHANGE [N NET ASSETS 76,279 21,992 108,271
Net assets, beginning of year 144,960 - 144,960
Net assetis, end of year $ 221,239 $ 31,992 $ 253,231

-58 -



City of Corunna

Internal Service Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Motor Retiree
Pool Benefits Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers 3 321,360 147,451 $ 468,811
Cash paid fo suppliers (64,852) - (64,852)
Cash paid for employee benefits (2,510} {115,459} (117,969)
Cash paid io employees {33,307} - {33,307)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 220,691 31,992 252,683
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers out (14,011} - {14,011}
CASH FLOWS FRCM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital purchases (213,421) - (213,421)
Proceeds from sale of assets 5,830 - 6,830
NET CASH (USED) BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES {208,591) -0- (206,591)
NET INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 89 31,992 32,081
Cash and cash eqguivalents, beginning of vear 5,456 - 5,456
Cash and cash eguivalents, end of year 3 5,545 31,892 3 37,537

Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operating income $ 83,460
Adjustments fo reconcile operating income
o net cash provided by operating aclivities

Depreciation and amortization 40,819
{Decrease} in accounts payable {3,170)
{Decrease} in accrued liabilities (218)
Increase in due to other funds 100,000

31,092 $ 115,452

- 40,619
- (3,170)
- (248)
- 100,000

NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 220,891

31,992 $ 252,683
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City of Corunna
Agency Funds
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

June 30, 2008

Fire Capital
Acquisitions Transportation
Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 43,563 3 10,486 $ 54,049
investments 13,921 ~ 13,921
TOTAL ASSETS 3 57,484 $ 10,488 $ 67,970
LIABILITIES
Due to individuals and agencies 3 57,484 3 10,486 $ 67,870
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City of Corunna

Sewer System

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalenis
Accounts receivabie
Due from other governmental units

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Investments
Treatment rights, net
Capital assets nof being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net

Total noncurrent assefs
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current liabiiities

Accounts payable

Other accrued liabilities

Accrued interest payable

Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Invesied in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for
Debt service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

2009 2008
$  (49,295) $  (59,453)
48,491 201,036
73,590 139,259
72,786 280,842
- 27
25,000 25,000
14,092 16,190
1 1
5,042,340 5,266,503
5,081,433 5,307,721
5,154,219 5,588,563
17,414 16,897
496 378
20,951 23,075
175,000 170,000
213,561 210,350
1,275,000 1,450,000
1,488,561 1,660,350
3,592,341 3,646,504
70,938 66,125
2,379 215,584
$ 3,665,658 $ 3,928,213
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City of Corunna
Sewer System

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 230,110 $ 356,580
Capital charges 227,455 237,566
Other 27 -
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 457,592 594,146
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 115,715 99,626
Employee benefits 12,153 36,492
Other operating costs 513,204 490,462
Depreciaticn and amortization 233,956 170,725
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 875,028 797,305
OPERATING (LOSS) {417,436) {203,159}
NCONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest expense and fees {66,591) {73,310}
Rent revenue - 1,339
Construction grant - Federal 167,729 337,396
Interest earned 1,243 1,810
TOTAL NONOPERATING {EXPENSES) 92,381 267,235
INCOME (L.LOSS} BEFCRE TRANSFERS (325,055) 64,076
TRANSFERS
Transfers in 62,500 175,000
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS {262,555) 239,076
Net assets, beginning of year 3,928,213 3,689,137
Net assets, end of year $ 3,665,658 $ 3,928,213
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City of Corunna
Sewer System
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating (loss) $ (417,436) {203,159)
Adjustments fo reconcile operating (loss) te
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 233,956 170,725
Decrease in receivabies 152,545 14,9586
Decrease in prepaids - 74,430
Decrease in due from other governmental units 65,669 374,231
Increase {decrease} in accounts payable 217 {24,519)
Increase in accrued liabilities 118 109
{Decrease} in accrued interest payable {2,124} {2,043)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 32,945 404,790
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Rent earned - 1,339
Transfers in 62,500 175,000
NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 62,500 176,339
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPRITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest expense {66,591) {73,310)
Construction grant - Federal 157,729 337,396
Capital purchases (7,695) (758,737)
Payments on borrowing (170,000) (165,000)
NET CASH (USED) BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES {86,557) (659,851)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Interest revenue 1,243 1,810
NET INCREASE {(DECREASE} IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS DURING YEAR 10,131 {76,712)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year {59,426) 17,286
Cash and cash eguivalents, end of year $ {49,295} (53,426}
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City of Corunna
Component Unit Funds
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

June 30, 2009

General Parking Joint Lot Parking
Fund Fund Fund Lot Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 28028 § 2605 $22839 § 126800 § 686,022
Cash and cash equivalents - resiricied 4,320 - - - 4,320
Investments 125,000 - - - 125,000
Coniracts receivable 632,418 - - - 632,418
TOTAL ASSETS $780766 § 2605 $22889 $ 12,500 $ 827,780
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payabie $ - 9 - 5 69 § - 35 69
Due to other governments - local 149,999 - - - 149,999
Deferred revenue 627,206 - - - 627,206
Rental deposits 4,320 - - ~ 4,320
TOTAL LIABILITIES 781,825 -0- 69 -0- 781,694
FUND BALANCES
Unreserved
Undesignated 8,241 2,605 22,820 12,500 46,166
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 780768 $ 2605 $22889 $ 125600 $ 827,780
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City of Corunna
Component Unit Funds

RECONCILIATION OF THE COMBINING BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT
OF NET ASSETS - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

June 30, 2009

Tatal fund balances - governmental funds $ 46,166
Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported as assets in the governmental funds.

The cost of capital assets is $ 1,636,734
Accumulated depreciation is {619,843}
Capital assets, net 1,116,891

Long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and are therefore deferred in the funds. 627,206

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Loans and contracts payable 121,350
Due {o other governmental units 357,500
{478,850}
Net assets of governmental activities $ 1,311,413
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City of Corunna
Component Unit Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Year Ended June 30, 2009

General Parking Joint Lot Parking

Fund Fund Fund Lot Total
REVENUES
Taxes $ 84955 § - $ - % - % 84,955
interest and rents 59,512 - - - 59,512
[ntergovernmental
Local 80,458 - 5,000 - 85,458
Other 7,732 ~ ~ - 7,732
TOTAL REVENUES 232,857 -0- 5,000 -0- 237,657
EXPENDITURES
Current
Community and economic development
Taxes 29,673 - - - 29,673
Employee benefiis 2,700 - - - 2,700
Contracted services 2,749 - - - 2,749
Insurance 4,781 - - - 4,781
Supplies 6,158 - - - 6,158
Repairs and maintenance 22174 - - - 22174
Utilities 3,408 - 956 - 4,364
Miscellaneous 16,940 - - - 16,940
Debt service
Principal 69,024 - - ~ 69,024
Other debt related payments 32,500 - - - 32,500
Interest and fiscal charges 6,647 - - - 6,647
Capital cutlay 17,762 175 - - 17,937
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 214,416 175 956 -(- 215,547
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENDITURES 18,241 {175} 4,044 Q- 22,110
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - 5,000 5,000 10,000
Transfers out (10,000} - - - (10,000}
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SCURCES (USES) {10,000) -0- 5,000 5,000 -0-
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 8,241 {175) 9,044 5,000 22,110
Fund balances, beginning of year - 2,780 13,776 7,500 24,056
Fund balances, end of year $ 8241 $ 2605 $22820 $ 12500 $ 46,166
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City of Corunna
RECONCILIATION CF THE COMBINING STATEMENT CF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF THE GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 22,110
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Capital outiays are reported as expendiiures in governmental funds. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:
Depreciation expense (106,147}
Some items reported in the statement of activities do not result in the use of or provide current
financial resources and therefore are reported differently than in the governmental funds,
These activities consist of:
{Cecrease) in deferred revenue {80,458)
Repayment of leng-term debt and borrowing of long-term debt is reported as expenditures and
other financing sources in governmentai funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liahilities and the borrowings increase [ong-term liabiiities in the statement of net assets.
In the current year, these amounts consist of:

Payments on long-term obligations 101,624

Change in net assets of governmental activities $(62,971)
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayar and
Members of the City Councii
City of Corunna

Corunna, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental aclivities, business-type activities,
the discretely presented companent unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Corunna, Michigan, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 27, 2009. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptraller General of
the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In pianning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Corunna’s internal conirol over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control

over financial reporting.

A conirof deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatemenis on a timely basis. A
significanf deficiency is a control deficiency, or a combination of control defictencies, that adversely affects the
entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generaity
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the City's
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal
control over financial reporting.

A naferial weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or
agetected by the City's internal control over financial reporting.

Cur consideration of the internal conirol over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

East Lansing = Rochester Hills = St. Johns
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tesis of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which couid have a direct and material eflect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do ncot express such an opinion. The results of our fests disclosed no
material instances of noncompliance or other matters that are be required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Mayor and the City Council of the

City of Corunna, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

M .’a%/l Fc,

ABRAHAM & GAFFNEY, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

October 27, 2009
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